
United States Court of Appeals
Fifth Federal Judicial Circuit
Louisiana, Mississippi, Texas

Circuit Judges
 Carl E. Stewart, Chief Judge  .................300 Fannin St., Ste. 5226 ............................................................... (318) 676-3765
  Shreveport, LA 71101-3425 
 Edith H. Jones .......................................515 Rusk St., U.S. Courthouse, Rm. 12505  ................................... (713) 250-5484
  Houston, Texas 77002-2655 
 Jerry E. Smith ........................................515 Rusk St., U.S. Courthouse, Rm. 12621  ................................... (713) 250-5101
  Houston, Texas 77002-2698  
 James L. Dennis ....................................600 Camp St., Rm. 219 .................................................................. (504) 310-8000
  New Orleans, LA 70130-3425  
 Priscilla R. Owen ...................................903 San Jacinto Blvd., Rm. 434  ..................................................... (512) 916-5167
	 	 Austin,	Texas	78701-2450		 		
 Jennifer Walker Elrod ...........................  515 Rusk St., U.S. Courthouse, Rm. 12014  .................................. (713) 250-7590
  Houston, Texas 77002-2603 
 Leslie H. Southwick ...............................501 E. Court St., Ste. 3.750  ........................................................... (601) 608-4760
  Jackson, MS 39201 
 Catharina Haynes .................................1100 Commerce St., Rm. 1452  ..................................................... (214) 753-2750
  Dallas, Texas 75242  
 James E. Graves Jr. ................................501 E. Court St., Ste. 3.550  ........................................................... (601) 608-4775
  Jackson, MS 39201  
 Stephen A. Higginson ...........................600 Camp St., Rm. 300  ................................................................. (504) 310-8228
  New Orleans, LA 70130-3425 
 Gregg J. Costa .......................................515 Rusk St., Room 4627............................................................... (713) 250-5030
  Houston, Texas 77002
	 Don	R.	Willett .......................................903 San Jacinto Blvd., RM. 440 ..................................................... (512) 691-9330
	 	 Austin,	Texas	78701
 James C. Ho ..........................................1100 Commerce St., Suite 1264 .................................................... (214) 765-2870
  Dallas, Texas 75242
 Stuart Kyle Duncan ...............................777 Florida St., Ste. 369 ................................................................ (225) 726-2905
  Baton Rouge, LA  70801
 Kurt D. Engelhardt ................................600 Camp St., RM. 230 .................................................................. (504) 310-8311
  New Orleans, LA 70130
 Andrew S. Oldham ................................903 San Jacinto Bvd., RM. 440 ....................................................... (512)676-2690
	 	 Austin,	Texas	78701
Senior Circuit Judges
 Rhesa H. Barksdale ...............................501 E. Court St., Ste. 3.800  ........................................................... (601) 608-4730
  Jackson, MS 39201   
 Fortunato P. Benavides .........................903 San Jacinto Blvd., Rm. 450  ..................................................... (512) 916-5796
	 	 Austin,	Texas	78701-2450
 Edith Brown Clement............................600 Camp St., RM 2w00 ................................................................ (504) 916-5796
  New Orleans, LA 70130-3425
 W. Eugene Davis ...................................600 Camp St., Room 210 ............................................................... (504) 310-8036
  New Orleans, LA 70130
 Patrick E. Higginbotham .......................755 E. Mulberry Avenue, Ste. .350  ............................................... (210) 472-4060
   San Antonio, Texas 78212
 E. Grady Jolly ........................................501 E. Court St., Ste. 3.850 ............................................................ (601) 608-4745
  Jackson, MS 39201 
 Carolyn Dineen King .............................515 Rusk Avenue, RM 11020 ........................................................ (713) 250-5750
  Houston, Texas 77002-2694 
 Thomas M. Reavley ..............................515 Rusk Avenue, RM 11009 ........................................................ (713) 250-5185
  Houston, Texas 77002-2605  
 Jacques L. Wiener Jr. .............................600 Camp St., Rm. 244  ................................................................. (504) 310-8098
  New Orleans, LA 70130-3425     
Circuit Executive
 Ted Cominos .........................................John Minor Wisdom U.S. Court of Appeals Bldg  .......................... (504) 310-7777
  600 Camp St., Rm. 100
  New Orleans, LA 70130-3425 
Circuit Clerk of Court
 Lyle W. Cayce ........................................600 S. Maestri Pl. .......................................................................... (504) 310-7700
  New Orleans, LA 70130 
Senior Staff Attorney
 Mike E. Schneider .................................600 S. Maestri Pl. .......................................................................... (504) 310-8504
  New Orleans, LA 70130 
Circuit Librarian
 Sue A. Creech .......................................John Minor Wisdom U.S. Court of Appeals Bldg  .......................... (504) 310-7797
  600 Camp St., Rm. 106, New Orleans, LA 70130-3425 
Circuit Mediation and Judicial Support Office
 Vikram Chandhok .................................John Minor Wisdom U.S. Court of Appeals Bldg  .......................... (504) 310-7797
  600 Camp St., New Orleans, LA 70130-3425 
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United States District Courts
Northern District of Mississippi

District Clerk of Court ............. David Crews .................911 Jackson Ave. East, Rm. 369, Oxford 38655-3622 ........ (662) 234-1971
Divisions
 Aberdeen ..................................................................301 West Commerce St., Aberdeen 39730-0704 ............... (662) 369-4952
 Greenville .................................................................305 Main St., Rm. 329, Greenville 38701-0190 ................. (662) 335-1651
 Oxford.......................................................................911 Jackson Ave. East, Rm 369, Oxford, MS 38655-3622 .. (662) 234-1971
Chief Deputy Clerk
  ........................................... Gina P. Kilgore ..............911 Jackson Ave. East, Rm. 369, Oxford 38655-3622 ........ (662) 281-3029
Judges
Sharion Aycock, Chief District Judge ............................301 West Commerce St., Room 321, Aberdeen 39730 ....... (662) 369-2628
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Melinda R. Tucker ........301 West Commerce St., Aberdeen 39730 ........................ (662) 369-2628
Michael P. Mills, District Judge .....................................911 Jackson Ave. East, Rm. 369, Oxford 38655-3622 ........ (662) 234-1538
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Sallie Wilkerson ...........911 Jackson Ave. East, Rm. 369, Oxford 38655-3622 ........ (662) 234-1538
Debra Brown, District Judge .........................................305 Main St., Rm. 329, Greenville 38701-4013 ................. (662) 335-4416
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Rita Thomas  ................305 Main St., Rm. 329, Greenville 38701-4013 ................. (662) 335-4416
Senior District Judges
 Neal B. Biggers Jr. .....................................................911 Jackson Ave. East, Oxford 38655-3622 ....................... (662) 234-3401
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk  ... Karen Tidwell ...............911 Jackson Ave. East, Rm. 369, Oxford 38655-3622 ........ (662) 234-3401
 Glen H. Davidson .....................................................301 West Commerce St., Aberdeen 39730 ........................ (662) 369-6486
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Melba Applewhite .......301 West Commerce St., Aberdeen 39730 ........................ (662) 369-6486
Magistrate Judges
 David A. Sanders ......................................................301 West Commerce St. Rm. 218, Aberdeen 39730 ......... (662) 369-2138
 Jane M. Virden .........................................................305 Main St. Rm. 329, Greenville 38701 ........................... (662) 335-9214
 Roy Percy..................................................................911 Jackson Ave, Oxford 38655 ......................................... (662) 234-3114
Court Reporter-Greenville ............................................305 Main St., Rm. 329, Greenville 38701 .......................... (662) 390-4320
Court Reporter-Aberdeen  ...... Phyllis K. McLarty .........301 W. Commerce St., Rm. 342, Aberdeen 39730 ............ (662) 369-1017
Court Reporter-Oxford............ Rita Davis .....................911 Jackson Ave. East, Rm. 369, Oxford 38655 ................. (662) 281-3027
United States Attorney (DOJ) . William C. Lamar ..........900	Jefferson	Ave.,	Oxford	38655 ..................................... (662) 234-3351

Southern District of Mississippi
District Clerk of Court ............. Arthur S. Johnston III ...501 E. Court St., Ste. 2.500, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4000
Divisions
 Northern (Jackson) and Western (Natchez) .............501 E. Court St., Ste. 2.500, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4000
	 Eastern	(Hattiesburg) ................................................701	N.	Main	St.,	Ste.	200,	Hattiesburg	39401 ................... (601) 255-6400
 Southern (Gulfport) ..................................................2012 15th St., Ste. 403, Gulfport 39501 ............................ (228) 563-1700
Judges
Daniel P. Jordan III, Chief District Judge .......................501 E. Court St., Ste. 5.750, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4120
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk  ... Shone Powell ...............501 E. Court St., Ste. 5.750, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4120
Henry T. Wingate, District Judge ..................................501 E. Court St., Ste. 6.750, Jackson 39201 ........................(601) 608-4100
Carlton W. Reeves, District Judge .................................501 E. Court St., Ste. 5.550, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4140
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk Joyce Smith ......................501 E. Court St., Ste. 5.550, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4140
Keith Starrett, District Judge .........................................701	N.	Main	St.,	Ste.	228,	Hattiesburg	39401 ................... (601) 255-6420
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk  ... Debra Jackson ..............701	N.	Main	St.,	Ste.	228,	Hattiesburg	39401 ................... (601) 255-6420
Halil S. (Sul) Ozerden, District Judge ……………………… ...2012 15th St., Ste. 714, Gulfport 39501 ............................ (228) 679-1070
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk  ... Anne	Scafide ................2012 15th St., Ste. 714, Gulfport 39501 ............................ (228) 679-1070
Walter J. Gex III, Senior District Judge ..........................2012 15th St., Ste. 572, Gulfport 39501 ............................ (228) 563-1732
William H. Barbour Jr., Senior District Judge ...............501 E. Court St., Ste. 4.550, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4400
Tom S. Lee, Senior District Judge ..................................501 E. Court St., Ste. 4.756, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4420
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk  ... Lisa Evans .....................501 E. Court St., Ste. 4.756, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4420
David Bramlette III, Senior District Judge .....................P.O. Box 928, Natchez 39121 ............................................. (601) 897-6945
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Lorraine Arnold ............P.O. Box 928, Natchez 39121 ............................................  (601) 897-6945
Louis Guirola Jr., District Judge .....................................2012 15th St., Ste. 814, Gulfport 39501 .............................(228) 563-1767
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Vicki Kelly .....................2012 15th n St., Ste. 814, Gulfport 39501 ..........................(228) 563-1767
Magistrate Judges
Robert H. Walker ..........................................................2012 15th St., Ste. 672, Gulfport 39501 ............................ (228) 563-1720
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Sandra Ryan .................2012 15th St., Ste. 672, Gulfport 39501 ............................ (228) 563-1720
Michael T. Parker ..........................................................701	N.	Main	St.,	Ste.	216,	Hattiesburg	39401 ................... (601) 255-6370
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Kim Mitchell .................701	N.	Main	St.,	Ste.	216,	Hattiesburg	39401 ................... (601) 255-6370
Linda Anderson .............................................................501 E. Court St., Ste. 6.150, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4440
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Nijah Lewis ...................501 E. Court St., Ste. 6.150, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4440
F. Keith Ball....................................................................501 E. Court St., Ste. 5.150, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4460
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Jackie E. Jones ..............501 E. Court St., Ste. 5.150, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 608-4460
John C. Gargiulo ............................................................2012 15th St., Ste. 672, Gulfport 39501 ............................ (228) 563-1755
 Courtroom Deputy Clerk .... Ann Busby ....................2012 15th St., Ste. 672, Gulfport 39051 ............................ (228) 563-1755
Court Reporters-Jackson ......... Cherie Bond .................501 E. Court St., Jackson 39201 ........................................ (601) 608-4186
  Candice Crane ..............501 E. Court St., Jackson 39201 ........................................ (601) 608-4187
  Brenda Wolverton .......501 E. Court St., Jackson 39201 ........................................ (601) 608-4188
Court Reporter-Hattiesburg  ... Fred Jeske ....................701	N.	Main	St.,	Ste.	200,	Hattiesburg	39401 ................... (601) 255-6432
Court Reporters-Gulfport ....... Teri Norton...................2012 15th St., Gulfport 39501 ........................................... (228) 563-1748
  Sherri Penny ................2012 15th St., Gulfport 39501 ........................................... (228) 563-1751
United States Attorney (DOJ) . Mike Hurst ...................501 E. Court St., Ste. 4.430, Jackson 39201 ....................... (601) 965-4480
   1575 20th Avenue, 2nd Floor, Gulfport 39501 .................. (228) 563-1560
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United States Bankruptcy Courts

Northern District of Mississippi
Bankruptcy Clerk of Court ...... Shallanda J. Clay......................... 703 Hwy. 145 N., Aberdeen 39730 ..................... (662) 369-2596
Bankruptcy Judges .................. Jason D. Woodard ...................... 703 Hwy. 145 N., Aberdeen 39730 ..................... (662) 369-2624
  Selene D. Maddox ...................... 703 Hwy. 145 N., Aberdeen 39730 ..................... (662) 369-8147

Bankruptcy Trustees
Acting U.S. Trustee .................. David W. Asbach ........................ 400 Poydras St., Texaco Center, Ste. 2110 .......... (504) 589-4018
   New Orleans, Louisiana 70130
Assistant U.S. Trustee ............. Ronald H. McAlpin ..................... 501 E. Court St., Ste. 6.430, Jackson 39201 ........ (601) 965-5241

Trustees
Chapter 7 Panel ....................... Jeffrey	A.	Levingston .................. P.O. Box 1327, Cleveland 38732 ......................... (662) 843-2791
  Henry J. Applewhite ................... P.O. Box 724, Aberdeen 39730 ........................... (662) 369-7783

Standing Trustees
Chapter 12 ............................... Harold J. Barkley Jr. .................... P.O. Box 4476, Jackson 39296-4476.................... (601) 362-6161
Chapter 13 ............................... Locke D. Barkley ......................... 6360 I-55 North, Ste. 140, Jackson 39296-5829 . (601) 355-6661
  Terre M. Vardaman .................... P.O. Box 1326, Brandon 39043 ..........................  (601) 825-7663

Southern District of Mississippi 
Bankrutpcy Clerk of Court ...... Danny L. Miller ........................... P.O. Box 2448, Jackson 39225-2448.................... (601) 608-4600 

Bankruptcy Judges .................. Katharine M. Samson ................ 2012 15th St., Ste. 244, Gulfport 39501 ............. (228) 563-1840
  Neil P. Olack ............................... P.O. Box 2448, Jackson 39225-2448.................... (601) 608-4690

Bankruptcy Trustees
Acting U.S. Trustee .................. David W. Asbach ........................ 400 Poydras St., Texaco Center, Ste. 2110 .......... (504) 589-4018
   New Orleans, Louisiana 70130
Assistant U.S. Trustee ............. Ronald H. McAlpin ..................... 501 E. Court St., Ste. 6.430, Jackson 39201 ........ (601) 965-5241

Trustees
Chapter 7 Panel ....................... Eileen	N.	Shaffer ........................ 401 E. Capitol St., Ste. 316, Jackson 39215 ......... (601) 969-3006
  Derek A. Henderson................... 1765-A Lelia Dr., Ste. 103, Jackson 39216 ........... (601) 948-3167
  J. Stephen Smith ........................ 1855 Crane Ridge Dr., Ste D., Jackson 39216 ...... (601) 352-6767
  Kimberly R. Lentz ....................... 2505 14th St., Gulfport 39502 ............................ (228) 867-6050

Standing Trustees
Chapter 12 ............................... Harold J. Barkley Jr. .................... P.O. Box 4476, Jackson 39296-4476.................... (601) 362-6161
Chapter 13 ............................... Harold J. Barkley Jr. .................... P.O. Box 4476, Jackson 39296-4476.................... (601) 362-6161
  J. C. Bell ...................................... P.O.	Box	566,	Hattiesburg	39403-0566 ............... (601) 582-5011
  James L. Henley Jr. ..................... P.O. Box 31980, Jackson 39286-1980.................. (601) 981-9100
  Warren A. Cuntz Jr. .................... P.O. Box 3749, Gulfport 39505............................ (228) 831-9531

Mississippi Supreme Court
P.O. Box 117

Jackson, Mississippi 39205
Telephone:	(601)	359-3697		•		Fax:	(601)	359-2443

E-mail: sctclerk@courts.ms.gov
Website: www.courts.ms.gov

Executive Officer: Michael K. Randolph, Chief Justice

Judges Term ends 
Chief	Justice	Michael	K.	Randolph ............................................... Southern District 2, Place 3 ..........................................Jan. 2021
Presiding	Justice	James	W.	Kitchens ............................................ Central District 1, Place 3 ..............................................Jan. 2025
Presiding	Justice	Leslie	D.	King.	 ................................................... Central District 1, Place 2 ..............................................Jan. 2021
Associate	Justice	Josiah	Dennis	Coleman .................................... Northern District 3, Place 3 ..........................................Jan. 2021
Associate	Justice	James	D.	Maxwell ............................................ Northern District 3, Place 2 ..........................................Jan. 2025 
Associate	Justice	Dawn	Beam	  ................................................... Southern District 2, Place 2 ..........................................Jan. 2025
Associate	Justice	Robert	P.	Chamberlin ....................................... Northern District 3, Place 1 ..........................................Jan. 2025
Associate	Justice	David	M.	Ishee ................................................. Southern District 2, Place 1 ..........................................Jan. 2020 
Associate	Justice	T.	Kenneth	Griffis* ............................................ Central District 1, Place 1 ..............................................Jan. 2022

*	Judge	T.	Kenneth	Griffis	served	as	Chief	Judge	of	the	Court	of	Appeals	Jan.	2-31,	2019

Managerial Staff
Hubbard T. Saunders, Court Administrator
D. Jeremy Whitmire, Supreme Court Clerk

Rusty Holmes, Chief Deputy Clerk
Alexander Sullivan, Editor of Opinions

Terms of Court.		Mississippi	Code	Annotated	1972,	Section	9-3-3.	A	term	of	the	Supreme	Court	shall	be	held	twice	each	year	in	
the city of Jackson, to be styled the Supreme Court; and the terms shall commence the second Monday of September and the 
first	Monday	of	March,	and	the	court	shall	be	kept	open	for	the	discharge	of	business	for	at	least	nine	months	of	every	year	if	
the business therein should require.



Mississippi Supreme Court District Map

5

TUNICA

DESOTO

TATE

JEFFERSON

LINCOLN

WILKINSON

ADAMS

PIKE

JEFFERSON
DAVIS

LAMAR
PERRYFORREST

HANCOCK

STONE

HARRISON JACKSON

PEARL RIVER

JONES WAYNE

FRANKLIN

AMITE

WALTHALL

GEORGE

GREENE
MARION

COVINGTON

LAWRENCE

COAHOMA
QUITMAN

PANOLA

MARSHALL

BENTON

TIPPAH

ALCORN TISHO-
MINGO

PRENTISS

LAFAYETTE

UNION

PONTOTOC

LEE ITAWAMBA

MONROECHICKASAW
CALHOUN

YALOBUSHA

TALLAHATCHIE

BOLIVAR

SUNFLOWER

SHARKEY

WASHINGTON

ISSAQUENA

HUMPHREYS

YAZOO

HOLMES

LEFLORE

GRENADA

CARROLL

MONT-
GOMERY

WEBSTER
CLAY

LOWNDESOKTIBBEHA

CHOCTAW

ATTALA
WINSTON

NOXUBEE

KEMPERNESHOBALEAKE

MADISON

LAUDERDALENEWTONSCOTT

RANKINHINDS

CLAIBORNE

COPIAH SIMPSON

SMITH JASPER CLARKE

WARREN

2

1

3



Court of Appeals of the State of Mississippi

Carroll Gartin Justice Building
450 High St.

Jackson, Mississippi 39201
P.O. Box 22847

Jackson, Mississippi 39225
Phone:	(601)	576-4665		•		Fax:	(601)	576-4708

Website: www.courts.ms.gov

Judges Term ends 
Chief Judge Donna M. Barnes .................................................... District 1, Place 2 ...........................................................Jan. 2027
Presiding Judge Virginia C. Carlton ............................................. District 4, Place 1 ...........................................................Jan. 2023
Presiding Judge Jack L. Wilson .................................................... District 3, Place 1 ...........................................................Jan. 2025
Judge Jim M. Greenlee ............................................................... District 1, Place 1 ...........................................................Jan. 2023
Judge Latrice Westbrooks ........................................................... District 2, Place 2 ...........................................................Jan. 2025
Judge Sean Tindell ...................................................................... District 5, Place 2 ...........................................................Jan. 2027
Judge Deborah McDonald .......................................................... District 2, Place 1 ...........................................................Jan. 2027
Judge Anthony (Tony) Lawrence III. ............................................ District 5, Place 1 ...........................................................Jan. 2027
Judge David McCarty .................................................................. District 4, Place 2 ...........................................................Jan. 2027
Judge Cory T. Wilson. .................................................................. District 3, Place 2 ...........................................................Jan. 2023

Staff
Hubbard T. Saunders .........................................................................................................................................Court Administrator
D. Jeremy Whitmire ................................................................................................................................................... Clerk of Courts
Camille H. Evans ................................................................................................................................ Assistant Court Administrator
Justin	Ponds ..........................................................................................................................................................Editor of Opinions
Jack Bach .....................................................................................................................................................................Staff	Attorney
Christen Kazery ............................................................................................................................................................Staff	Attorney
Michael Brown ............................................................................................................................................................Staff	Attorney

Note: 2001 Legislature designated Court of Appeals districts.
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Court of Appeals of the State of Mississippi District Map
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Administrative Office of Courts
Kevin Lackey, Director

Carroll	Gartin	Justice	Building	-	450	High	St.
Jackson, Mississippi 39201

P.O. Box 117
Jackson, Mississippi 39205

Phone:	(601)	576-4630		•		Fax:	(601)	576-4639

Office of the Clerk of Supreme Court and Court of Appeals
D. Jeremey Whitmire, Clerk of Courts

Carroll	Gartin	Justice	Building	-	450	High	St.
Jackson, Mississippi 39201

P.O. Box 249
Jackson, Mississippi 39205

Phone:	(601)	359-3694		•		Fax:	(601)	359-2407

State Library
Carroll	Gartin	Justice	Building

450 High St.
Jackson, Mississippi 39201

P.O. Box 1040
Jackson, Mississippi 39215-1040

Phone:	(601)	359-3672		•		Fax:	(601)	359-2912

Stephen Parks, State Librarian
Casandra	Noel,	Circulation	Librarian

LaTavius Jackson, Reference Librarian
Judy	Reedy,	Information	Processing	Librarian

Mississippi Commission on Judicial Performance
660 North St., Ste. 104

Jackson, MS 39202
Phone	(601)	359-1273		•		Fax	(601)	354-6277

Darlene Ballard, Executive Director

Commission Members

 Judge Kent McDaniel, Chairman  Cornelia Gayden, Vice-Chair

Judge Vicki R. Barnes
Judge Jimmy Morton

Roy D. Campbell III, Esq.
Judge James L. Roberts Jr.

(Ret.) Col. Silvanus Johnson
Judge	John	H.	Emfinger	(Alternate)	
Judge Cynthia Brewer (Alternate)
Judge Edwin Woods Jr. (Alternate) 

Judge Richelle Lumpkin (Alternate)
Karen K. Sawyer (Alternate)
Robert E. Graves (Alternate)
Jeffery	M.	Adcock	(Alternate)	

Mississippi Judicial College
Randy G. Pierce, Director

207 Rebel Dr., Kinard Hall
University, Mississippi 38677

Phone:	(662)	915-5955		•		Fax:	(662)	915-7845
mjc.olemiss.edu

Email: msjudcol@olemiss.edu
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Social Security Administration
Office of Disability Adjudication and Review

Administrative	Law	Judges 100 West Capitol St., Ste. 401, Jackson 39269 • (888) 385-8499
	 Hearing	Office	Chief	Judge,	Elizabeth	de	Gruy
	 Marilyn	R.	Brand	 David	J.	Shea	 Patricia	Melvin	 Jeffrey	Narvil
  John B. Jones  Gwendolyn Hoover Wendy A. Hollingsworth Larry J. Stroud
   

Administrative	Law	Judges	 1901 Broadway Dr., Hattiesburg 39402 • (866) 348-5831 
	 Hearing	Office	Chief	Judge,	Margaret	M.	Sullivan
 David Benedict  John J. Fraiser III William C. Grayson Greg White  
  Felicia Burkes  Douglas Glimer  Michael D. Harbart Lanier Williams 
 James S. Elkins Lori S. Grayson Laurie Porciello

Administrative	Law	Judges	 1150 South Green St., Ste. 3A, Tupelo 38804 • (866) 275-9405
	 Hearing	Office	Chief	Judge,	Rebecca	Sartor	
 Harold Barkley Michael DePrimo Shannon Mashburn
	 Joseph	Bestul	 Roger	Lott		 James	Prothro
 James Cumbie Greg Maddox  

9

Attorney General’s Office
Walter Sillers Building
550 High St., Ste. 1200

Jackson, Mississippi 39201
P.O. Box 220, Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0220

Phone: (601) 359-3680
Website: www.ago.state.ms.us

Jim Hood, Attorney General

Administrative	Division ............................................................................................................................................. (601) 359-3810

Alcohol & Tobacco Enforcement Division ................................................................................................................. (601) 359-4159

Bureau	of	Victim	Assistance ..................................................................................................................................... (601) 359-6766

Child	Desertion	Division ........................................................................................................................................... (601) 359-4250

Civil	Litigation ........................................................................................................................................................... (601) 359-9560

Consumer	Protection	Division .................................................................................................................................. (601) 359-4230

Consumer	Protection,	Remote	Location	1141	Bayview	Ave.,	Ste.	402,	Biloxi	39530 ...............(228) 386-4400 / (f) (228) 386-4407

Criminal	Litigation .................................................................................................................................................... (601) 359-3687

Cyber Crime Unit ...................................................................................................................................................... (601) 576-4281

Mississippi Gaming Commission ..........................................................................................................................(f) (601) 576-3863

Human Services .......................................................................................................(601)	359-4239	/	(coast	office)	(228)	435-1382

Mississippi	Institution	of	Higher	Learning	(IHL) ....................................................................................................(f) (601) 432-6781

Insurance Integrity Enforcement Bureau ................................................................................................................. (601) 359-4250

Medicaid	Fraud	Control	Unit	(Coast	Office) ............................................................(601)	359-4220	/	(coast	office)	(228)	435-1380

Opinions & Local Government Division .................................................................................................................... (601) 359-3838

Public	Employees’	Retirement	System	of	Mississippi	(PERS) ........................(601) 359-3589 / (800) 444-7377 / (f) (601) 359-2285

Prosecutor’s Training ................................................................................................................................................ (601) 359-9685

Public	Information	Office.......................................................................................................................................... (601) 359-2002

Public Integrity Division ............................................................................................................................................ (601) 359-4250

State Government Division ....................................................................................................................................... (601) 359-4210

Vulnerable Persons Unit ........................................................................................................................................... (601) 359-4250

Wildlife .................................................................................................................................................................(f) (601) 432-2020



Workers’ Compensation Commission
1428 Lakeland Dr.

Jackson, Mississippi 39216
P.O. Box 5300

Jackson, Mississippi 39296-5300
Phone:	(601)	987-4200		•		Fax:	(601)	987-4220

Ray C. Minor, Executive Director

Commissioners
Chairman, Mark Formby (601) 987-4258

Thomas A. Webb (601) 987-4256
Elizabeth (Beth) H. Aldridge (601) 987-4254

Administrative Judges
Robert Arnold III (601) 987-4263
Alan Goodman (601) 987-4279

Melba Dixon (601) 987-4264
Tammy Harthcock (601) 987-4261

Deneise	Lott	(601)	987-4262
Virginia Mounger (601) 987-4278
Linda Thompson (601) 987-4267
Cynthia Wilson (601) 987-4257

Hearings of the full commission are in Jackson at the MWCC Building as follows: Mondays—Full Commission Appeal and Review 
Hearings;	Tuesdays	&	Wednesdays—Application	for	Lump	Sum	and	Compromise	settlements.	Ex	parte	matters;	Thursdays—Self-
insurer	Hearings	and	Commission	Administrative	meetings	and	additional	Appeals	and	Review	Hearings;	Monday-Friday—Hear-
ings	before	the	Administrative	Judges	are	set	in	the	county	where	the	accident	of	injury	occurred.

Mississippi Office of State Public Defender
André de Gruy State Defender

239 North Lamar, 6th Floor, Robert E. Lee Building
P.O. Box 3510

Jackson, MS 39207-3510
(601)	576-4290	(office)

(601) 576-4205 (fax)
www.ospd.ms.gov

Email: info@ospd.ms.gov

Capital Defense Counsel Division
André de Gruy, Director

P.O. Box 3510
Jackson, MS 39207-3510
(601)	576-2316	(office)

(601) 576-2319 (fax)
www.ospd.ms.gov

Indigent Appeals Division
George Holmes, Director

P.O. Box 3510
Jackson, MS 39207-3510
(601)	576-4200	(office)

(601) 576-4205 (fax)
www.ospd.ms.gov

Email: info@ospd.ms.gov

Training Division
Beau Rudder, Director

P.O. Box 3510
Jackson, MS 39207-3510
(601)	576-4200	(office)

(601) 576-4205 (fax)
www.ospd.ms.gov
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Agency Address Phone Fax  Web
Agriculture and Commerce, ....P.O. Box 1609........................ (601) 359-1100 ....... (601) 354-6290...................www.mdac.ms.gov
Department of  Jackson 39215-1609
Archives and History,  ..............P.O. Box 571 .......................... (601) 576-6850  ...... (601) 576-6975  ................. www.mdah.ms.gov
Department of Jackson 39205-0571
Attorney	General	 ....................P.O. Box 220 .......................... (601) 359-3680  ...... (601) 359-5025  ..............www.ago.state.ms.us
 Jackson 39205-0220
Auditor, State  ..........................501 N. West St., Ste. 801 ...... (601) 576-2800  ...... (601) 576-2687  .....................www.osa.ms.gov
 Woolfolk Bldg., Jackson 39201
Bar Admissions, Board of ........P.O. Box 1449........................ (601) 576-4620 ....... (601) 576-4730 www.courts.ms.gov/baradmissions
 Jackson 39215-1449
Child	Protection	Services, ........P.O. Box 346 .......................... (601) 359-4368 ....... (601) 359-2074.................www.mdcps.ms.gov
Department of Jackson 39205
Corrections,	Department	of	 ...633 N. State St.,  ................... (601) 359-5600 ....... (601) 359-5624.................. www.mdoc.ms.gov
  Jackson 39202
Education,	 ...............................359 N. West St.  .................... (601) 359-3513  ...... (601) 359-2027  .............. www.mde.k12.ms.us
State Department of  Jackson 39201 
Emergency Management  .......P.O. Box 5644........................ (866) 519-6362  ....... (601) 933-6800  .....................www.msema.org
Agency  Pearl 39288 
Employment Security  .............P.O. Box 1699........................ (601) 321-6000  ...... (601) 321-7967  ..................www.mdes.ms.gov
 Jackson 39215-1699
Environmental Quality,  ...........P.O. Box 2261........................ (601) 961-5611  ...... (601) 354-6356  .................... www.deq.ms.gov
Department of  Jackson 39225
Ethics Commission  ..................P.O. Box 22746...................... (601) 359-1285  ...... (601) 359-1292..................www.ethics.ms.gov
 Jackson 39225-2746
Gaming Commission  ...............P.O. Box 23577...................... (601) 576-3800 ....... (601) 576-3929 www.msgamingcommission.com
  Jackson 39225-3577
Governor’s	Office	 ....................P.O. Box 139 .......................... (601) 359-3150  ...... (601) 359-3741  . www.governorbryant.ms.gov
 Jackson 39205-0139
Health, State Department of  ..P.O. Box 1700,  ...................... (601) 576-7400  ...... (601) 576-8139...................www.msdh.ms.gov
 Jackson 39215-1700
Human Services,  .....................P.O. Box 352 .......................... (601) 359-4500  ...... (601) 359-4510...................www.mdhs.ms.gov
Department of  Jackson 39205
Insurance Department ............P.O. Box 79 ............................ (601) 359-3569  ...... (601) 359-1077..................... www.mid.ms.gov
 Jackson 39205
Law Library, State ....................P.O. Box 1040,  ...................... (601) 359-3672  ...... (601) 359-2912  ................ www.courts.ms.gov
 Jackson 39215-1040  
Library Commission  ................3881 Eastwood Dr. ............... (601) 432-4111  ...... (601) 432-4476..................  www.mlc.lib.ms.us
 Jackson 39211 
Lieutenant	Governor’s	Office	 .P.O. Box 1018........................ (601) 359-3200  ...... (601) 359-4054.........www.ltgovreeves.ms.gov
 Jackson 39215
Mississippi Development  ........P.O. Box 849 .......................... (601) 359-3449  ...... (601) 359-2832  ............... www.mississippi.org
Authority  Jackson 39205
Motor Vehicle Commission  ....P.O. Box 16873...................... (601) 987-3995  ...... (601) 987-3997..................www.mmvc.ms.gov
 Jackson 39236-0873   
Narcotics,	Bureau	of	 ...............P.O. Box 720519.................... (601) 371-3600  ...... (601) 371-3695...............www.dps.state.ms.us
 Byram 39272
Oil and Gas Board  ...................500 Greymont Ave.  ............. (601) 576-4900  ...... (601) 354-6873  ..............www.ogb.state.ms.us
 Ste. E., Jackson 39202-3446 
Public Employees’ ....................429 Mississippi St.  ............... (601) 359-3589  ...... (601) 359-6707.....................www.pers.ms.gov
Retirement	System	(PERS)	 Jackson	39201-1005
Public Safety,  ..........................P.O. Box 958 .......................... (601) 987-1212  ...... (601) 987-1498..............  www.dps.state.ms.us
Department of  Jackson 39205 
Public Service Commission  .....P.O. Box 1174........................ (601) 961-5400  ...... (601) 961-5469  .............. www.psc.state.ms.us
 Jackson 39215
Revenue, Department of  ........P.O. Box 1033........................ (601) 923-7700  ...... (601) 923-7714...................... www.dor.ms.gov
 Jackson 39215-1033
Secretary of State  ...................P.O. Box 136 .......................... (601) 359-1350  ...... (601) 359-1499  ..................... www.sos.ms.gov
 Jackson 39205-0136 
Supreme Court  .......................P.O. Box 249 .......................... (601) 359-3694  ...... (601) 359-2407  ................ www.courts.ms.gov
  Jackson 39205-0117 
Transportation,	 .......................P.O. Box 1850,  ...................... (601) 359-7001  ...... (601) 359-7834...................www.mdot.ms.gov
Department of  Jackson 39215-1850
Treasurer, State  .......................P.O. Box 138,  ........................ (601) 359-3600  ...... (601) 359-2001..www.treasurerlynnfitch.ms.gov
 Jackson 39205-0138 
Wildlife, Fisheries & Parks,  .....1505 Eastover Dr.  ................ (601) 432-2400  ...... (601) 432-2024.................... www.mdwfp.com
Department of  Jackson 39211 
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Courts Districts by County
  Chancery Circuit
 District District 
Adams ..................................17 ......................................6 
Alcorn ....................................1 ......................................1 
Amite .....................................4 ......................................6 
Attala .....................................6 ......................................5
Benton .................................18 ......................................3
Bolivar ...................................7 ....................................11
Calhoun ...............................18 ......................................3
Carroll ....................................6 ......................................5
Chickasaw ............................14 ......................................3
Choctaw .................................6 ......................................5
Claiborne .............................17 ....................................22
Clarke ...................................12 ....................................10
Clay ......................................14 ....................................16 
Coahoma ...............................7 ....................................11
Copiah .................................15 ....................................22 
Covington ............................13 ....................................13
DeSoto ...................................3 ....................................17 
Forrest .................................10 ....................................12 
Franklin ..................................4 ......................................6
George .................................16 ....................................19
Greene .................................16 ....................................19
Grenada .................................3 ......................................5 
Hancock .................................8 ......................................2 
Harrison .................................8 ......................................2
Hinds .....................................5 ......................................7 
Holmes ................................11 ....................................21 
Humphreys ............................9 ....................................21 
Issaquena ..............................9 ......................................9 
Itawamba ...............................1 ......................................1 
Jackson ................................16 ....................................19 
Jasper ....................................2 ....................................13
Jefferson ..............................17 ....................................22
Jefferson	Davis .....................13 ....................................15 
Jones ....................................19 ....................................18 
Kemper ..................................6 ....................................10
Lafayette ..............................18 ......................................3 
Lamar...................................10 ....................................15
Lauderdale ...........................12 ....................................10 
Lawrence .............................13 ....................................15
Leake ...................................11 ......................................8
Lee .........................................1 ......................................1 

 Chancery Circuit
 District District 
Leflore ...................................7 ......................................4
Lincoln .................................15 ....................................14
Lowndes ..............................14 ....................................16
Madison ...............................11 ....................................20
Marion .................................10 ....................................15
Marshall ...............................18 ......................................3
Monroe ..................................1 ......................................1
Montgomery .........................3 ......................................5
Neshoba ................................6 ......................................8
Newton ..................................2 ......................................8
Noxubee ..............................14 ....................................16
Oktibbeha ............................14 ....................................16
Panola ....................................3 ....................................17
Pearl River ...........................10 ....................................15
Perry ....................................10 ....................................12
Pike ........................................4 ....................................14
Pontotoc ................................1 ......................................1
Prentiss ..................................1 ......................................1
Quitman ................................7 ....................................11
Rankin ..................................20 ....................................20
Scott ......................................2 ......................................8
Sharkey ..................................9 ......................................9
Simpson ...............................13 ....................................13
Smith ...................................13 ....................................13
Stone .....................................8 ......................................2
Sunflower ..............................9 ......................................4
Tallahatchie ...........................7 ....................................17
Tate ........................................3 ....................................17
Tippah ..................................18 ......................................3
Tishomingo ............................1 ......................................1
Tunica ....................................7 ....................................11
Union .....................................1 ......................................3
Walthall .................................4 ....................................14
Warren...................................9 ......................................9
Washington ...........................9 ......................................4
Wayne..................................19 ....................................10
Webster ...............................14 ......................................5
Wilkinson .............................17 ......................................6
Winston .................................6 ......................................5
Yalobusha ..............................3 ....................................17
Yazoo ...................................11 ....................................21
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